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Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, 		        Docket No. C-2010-2147793
Bureau of Transportation and Safety					

	v. 				
							
Milton B. Romig	


OPINION AND ORDER

BY THE COMMISSION:

		Before the Commission for consideration and disposition is the Initial Decision (I.D.) of Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) Elizabeth H. Barnes, issued in the above-captioned proceeding on December 7, 2011.  The Initial Decision sustained the Formal Complaint (Complaint).  No exceptions were filed.  However, pursuant to   Section 332(h) of the Public Utility Code (Code), 66 Pa. C.S. § 332(h), we have exercised our right to review the decision.  For the reasons set forth below, we modify the Initial Decision.

History of the Proceeding

On July 17, 2010, the Bureau of Transportation and Safety (BTS)[footnoteRef:1] filed a Complaint against Milton B. Romig (Respondent).  The Complaint requested that the Commission impose a civil penalty of  $1,000 on the Respondent for failing to properly obtain a certificate of public convenience before transporting passengers and property for compensation between points in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania in violation of the Public Utility Code, 66 Pa. C.S. § 1101.  A hearing was held on September 29, 2011.   [1:  		The Complainant was originally the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission’s Bureau of Transportation and Safety (BTS).  On August 11, 2011, the Commission reorganized its investigation and enforcement responsibilities into the Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement (BI&E).  Accordingly, the Complainant is now BI&E, represented by the Law Bureau.
] 


In the Initial Decision, the ALJ sustained the Complaint and issued a civil penalty of $500.00 for a violation of Section 1101 of the Public Utility Code (Code),     66 Pa. C.S. § 1101, due to the Respondent’s failure to obtain a certificate of public convenience before transporting individuals and property for compensation within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania without proper authority.  I.D. at 8.  No Exceptions were filed.  

Discussion

		The ALJ made nine Findings of Fact and reached three Conclusions of Law.  I.D. at 2-3, 7-8.  The Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law are incorporated herein by reference and are adopted without comment unless they are either expressly or by necessary implication rejected or modified by this Opinion and Order.  

		Specifically, the ALJ determined that, based on the testimony and exhibits offered in this case, the BTS sustained its burden of proving that the Respondent violated Section 1101 of the Code, 66 Pa. C.S. § 1101, by failing to obtain a certificate of public convenience before transporting passengers and property for compensation.  I.D. at 3.  The ALJ recommended that the Complaint be sustained and that the Respondent cease and desist from further violations of the Public Utility Code and the Public Utility Commission’s regulations.  I.D. at 8.  

The ALJ analyzed the appropriateness of a penalty for the Respondent based upon the Commission’s Policy Statement at 52 Pa. Code § 69.1201, which sets forth the guidelines the Commission uses when determining whether, and to what extent, a civil penalty is warranted.  As a result of the analysis of the Respondent’s violation, the ALJ imposed a civil penalty of $500, deeming this an appropriate amount for a first-time violation of the Public Utility Code, 66 Pa. C.S. § 1101.  I.D. at 4-7.

Upon review of the record, we conclude that the ALJ’s penalty analysis is correct and agree with the ALJ’s decision to reduce the civil penalty to $500.  However, the issue of greater import is ensuring the safety of the traveling public.  It is the responsibility of this Commission to make certain that any carrier providing transportation for compensation to the public in Pennsylvania has adequate insurance and meets all fitness and safety requirements.  As such, it is very important that these carriers become certificated and adhere to our Regulations.

Accordingly, we shall modify the ALJ’s Initial Decision and give the Respondent the opportunity to choose from two options in order to resolve this Complaint:


Option 1  – 	Under this first option, the Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of $150 and file an application for a certificate of public convenience, including all the necessary documentation, within thirty days of the date this Order is entered.

Option 2  –	Under this second option, the Respondent shall pay the full $500 civil penalty as imposed by the ALJ in the Initial Decision.

If the Respondent chooses to file an application for a certificate of public convenience, pursuant to the first option, above, we shall direct the Bureau of Technical Utility Services to review 52 Pa. Code § 29.508(a)(1), as well as 49 C.F.R. §§ 391.41-391.49, to determine whether the Respondent requires medical certification.  If the Respondent chooses not to file an application pursuant to the first option, above, the Respondent does so with the understanding that he is not certificated and may not provide transportation for compensation; THEREFORE,

		IT IS ORDERED:


		1.	That the Initial Decision issued by Administrative Law Judge Elizabeth H. Barnes on December 7, 2011, is modified, consistent with this Opinion and Order.

2.	That Milton B. Romig is given the option to either:

a.	Pay a civil penalty of One Hundred and Fifty Dollars ($150.00) and file an application for a certificate of public convenience, including all the necessary documentation, within thirty days of the entry date of this  Opinion and Order; or 
b.	Pay the full Five Hundred Dollar ($500.00) civil penalty as imposed by the Administrative Law Judge in the Initial Decision, consistent with this Opinion and Order.  

		3.	That if Milton B. Romig files an application for a certificate of public convenience, the Bureau of Technical Utility Services shall review                       52 Pa. Code § 29.508(a)(1), as well as 49 C.F.R. §§ 391.41-391.49, to determine whether  Milton B. Romig requires a medical certification.

		4.	That within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Commission’s Opinion and Order, in accordance with Section 3301 of the Public Utility Code,                      66 Pa. C.S. § 3301, Milton B. Romig shall pay the appropriate civil penalty by sending a certified check or money order, payable to: 

				Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission
				P.O. Box 3265
				Harrisburg, PA  17105-3265


 		5.	That Milton B. Romig shall cease and desist from further violations of the Public Utility Code and the Public Utility Commission’s Regulations.


		6.	That the record at Docket No. C-2010-2147793 shall be marked closed upon payment of the civil penalty directed above.
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